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·1· · · · · · · ·P R O C E E D I N G S

·2· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· The next case on our

·3· ·calendar is a show cause hearing, Case Number

·4· ·15-CMP-00762, The Front Page Restaurant, License Number

·5· ·1910.· Will the parties please approach and identify

·6· ·yourself for the record please.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· Good morning, Board Members.  I

·8· ·can still say that for 15 seconds.· Fernando Rivero for

·9· ·the District of Columbia.

10· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Good morning.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. KLINE:· Good morning.· Andrew Kline on

12· ·behalf of the licensee.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. TOBIN:· Michael Tobin on behalf of The

14· ·Front Page Restaurant.

15· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Good -- good morning.

16· ·Actually I say now good afternoon.· And let me apologize

17· ·for -- I know that you guys were here timely for this --

18· ·this matter but the fact finding hearing took longer

19· ·than we had anticipated.· But I appreciate your -- your

20· ·patience with The Board.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· I'm not surprised.· Transition

22· ·always automatically just adds time to a hearing --
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·1· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Thank you,

·2· ·Mr. Rivero.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· -- no matter how fast you go.

·4· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Are there

·5· ·any preliminary matters in this case?

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· Yes.· Board Members, the

·7· ·parties have an Offer in Compromise to present to The

·8· ·Board at this time.· The Government has provided

·9· ·hopefully hard copies that you all should have before

10· ·you which will assist in understanding and be more

11· ·efficient.· If you don't have those copies, let me know

12· ·at this time.

13· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· The Board has a copy,

14· ·Mr. -- Mr. Rivero.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· Right.· So this Offer in

16· ·Compromise concerns a case -- and I want to at least

17· ·highlight preliminarily that there are two charges in

18· ·this case.· But if you'll note that Charge 1 has a

19· ·violation of D.C. Code 25-762B1 and D.C. Code 25-762B5.

20· ·It's an unconventional method.· You're probably all used

21· ·seeing one charge per each, but nevertheless that

22· ·doesn't affect the terms of the OIC here.· The first
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·1· ·term of the OIC is that the licensee will pay a fine of

·2· ·$500 within 30 days for the violation of 25-762B5.· That

·3· ·violation concerns the removal of chairs and tables at

·4· ·the sidewalk cafe.· That's the facts in the notice under

·5· ·Charge 1 described.· If payment is not made within 30

·6· ·days, the license will be suspended until this payment

·7· ·is received.· The next one concerns Charge 2.· The

·8· ·licensee will receive a mandatory warning for the

·9· ·violation of 25-711.· Number 3, the licensee agrees to

10· ·the following capacity numbers in accordance with D.C.

11· ·Code 25-402A5, which is a -- a provision in the code

12· ·that requires applicants who are either applying or

13· ·were -- were initially applying to provide capacity

14· ·numbers, 375 for the interior of the establishment and

15· ·96 for the sidewalk cafe.· Capacity shall mean, for the

16· ·purposes of this agreement, the total of all persons

17· ·permitted to be seated or standing inside the licensed

18· ·premises.· Number 4, the capacity numbers agreed upon in

19· ·this Offer in Compromise may be subject to modification

20· ·by subsequent law.· I'll explain what that -- what the

21· ·purpose of that provision is in a moment.· Number 5,

22· ·licensee agrees to give notice to the ABC Board when it
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·1· ·files any application to modify existing permits for

·2· ·occupancy or use of public space.· I will explain what

·3· ·that means in a moment as well.· And finally the charge

·4· ·concerning a violation of 25-762B1 shall be dismissed.

·5· ·That is the entirety of the Offer in Compromise.

·6· · · · · · · ·Now, the Government received this case --

·7· ·and of course I'm aware that board members know the

·8· ·incidents that give rise to this particular case of

·9· ·October 31st, 2015.· I know that board members are

10· ·aware.· I know that there have been fact finding

11· ·hearings dealing with the subject matter.· And so when I

12· ·read the case I also had a very strong reaction.· I was

13· ·very concerned about the facts and wanted to move I felt

14· ·in an aggressive direction.· Since that time I have

15· ·extensively reviewed the case both with respect to legal

16· ·limitations and evidentiary limitations and engaged in

17· ·extensive negotiations with the licensee and have

18· ·arrived at this particular Offer in Compromise which I

19· ·believe is a just resolution to the case but more

20· ·importantly gives the Government and the Board tools

21· ·necessary for future enforcement that are currently

22· ·lacking.
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·1· · · · · · · ·So I will address first what I look at as

·2· ·legal limitations of the matter and then have some

·3· ·comments about the evidentiary concerns in the case

·4· ·fully understanding that our job here at this hearing is

·5· ·not to relitigate and not providing testimony but simply

·6· ·a profer so that the board members understand the

·7· ·Government's point of view as it moves through the

·8· ·analysis of the case.

·9· · · · · · · ·The first point to note is that this Offer

10· ·in Compromise presents capacity controls for future

11· ·enforcement and that this mechanism or feature of the

12· ·Offer in Compromise is currently beyond the authority of

13· ·this board to levy but it's within the law with respect

14· ·to what can be accepted as an Offer in Compromise term.

15· · · · · · · ·The -- the -- the law in this area as The

16· ·Board is probably aware is not a model of clarity.· And

17· ·there have been some questions and -- and -- and issues

18· ·and problems that have stemmed from as far back to the

19· ·Madam's Organ opinion.· And over the years there have

20· ·been some attempts to deal with the consequences of the

21· ·lack of clarity when it comes to enforcing occupancy

22· ·which as we know is subject to the terms of a
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·1· ·certificate of occupancy.· But if it's just the seats

·2· ·and not people, we have a problem with enforcement

·3· ·there.· And so over the years there have been some

·4· ·legislative solutions most notably D.C. Code 25-402 and

·5· ·25-403.· Those are the recent provisions -- relatively

·6· ·recent provisions that require licensees to provide when

·7· ·they're first applying for license capacity numbers.· So

·8· ·you have to -- they have to say how many people will be

·9· ·sitting down, how many people can stand up in it.· That

10· ·provision reaches new licensees.· And so the legislative

11· ·fix misses the population of licensees that have been in

12· ·existence for quite some time prior to the effective

13· ·date of these two particular code sections.· So this

14· ·Offer in Compromise is made in -- with those particular

15· ·issues in mind.

16· · · · · · · ·Secondly or -- or finally I do want to add

17· ·that I'm aware that largely as a result of the incident

18· ·that took place that there are some rules or changes to

19· ·rules concerning pub crawls but that the

20· ·effectiveness -- effective date or the implementation of

21· ·those rules won't actually affect the outcome of this

22· ·case since it took place prior to the creation of those
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·1· ·new rules or changes to those rules.

·2· · · · · · · ·Secondly with respect to what looks like the

·3· ·evidence in this case the investigative report does not

·4· ·contain evidence concerning the pub crawl.· I understand

·5· ·that -- I am aware that there are a couple of other

·6· ·investigative reports that were issued in this area and

·7· ·those reports may have contained that evidence.· But

·8· ·that -- this particular evidence is not here.· And so

·9· ·the government is limited to the evidence that's in the

10· ·investigative report.· And so that's not a part of the

11· ·case.· Also, what we are seeing is an admission of -- is

12· ·an admission that relates to the certificate of

13· ·occupancy, and the evidence is unclear because the

14· ·number in the certificate of occupancy in this case is

15· ·199, but that's seats.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· I'm sorry.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· Seats.· Seats, 199 seats.· It's

18· ·in the certificate of occupancy.· The report reflects --

19· ·the evidence reflects that the manager said well,

20· ·there's more than 199.· And I think you -- you could

21· ·draw a reasonable inference that he meant people.· But

22· ·still that doesn't get us through to where we need to go
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·1· ·because we have that -- there isn't a cap on that other

·2· ·end.· So that -- that was evidence that was concerning

·3· ·to the Government as well.· So with all of that in mind

·4· ·we produced the following Offer in Compromise which I

·5· ·believe is consonant with D.C. Code 25-447 as to what

·6· ·can be accepted.· The warning for Charge 2, which is

·7· ·mandatory -- mandatory, it's not -- it's not as if we

·8· ·could manage that.· The fine for the violation of

·9· ·25-762B5 is the maximum that can be charged under the

10· ·code because it is a first secondary tier violation.

11· · · · · · · ·And therefore what we're left with is the

12· ·capacity numbers that are going to be helpful tool for

13· ·enforcement.· And a word now on the capacity numbers

14· ·that folks understand the rationale.· I am aware that

15· ·The Board recently in recent times has accepted an Offer

16· ·in Compromise that held the same issue.· When I looked

17· ·at these numbers -- and I just want The Board to

18· ·understand I didn't flip a coin or just automatically

19· ·accept the first number that was given to me.· I did

20· ·want to make sure that these numbers were reasonable.

21· ·So I ended up looking at drawings and the building code

22· ·even though I'm not a building code official.· But at
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·1· ·least I wanted to satisfy myself that these numbers were

·2· ·reasonable before I provided them for the consideration

·3· ·of The Board.· And I am indeed satisfied that that is

·4· ·the case.· And finally the -- there are two additional

·5· ·provisions to this Offer in Compromise that I don't

·6· ·believe were part of the similar OIC that the Court --

·7· ·that The Board considered.· And that has to do with --

·8· ·that has to do with the modification of law.· If in the

·9· ·future -- and I hope this is the case -- the counsel

10· ·through a legislative fix finally once and for all

11· ·clears up all lingering questions in this area of law, I

12· ·wouldn't want it to be the case that this Offer in

13· ·Compromise would somehow exempt the licensee from any

14· ·future changes in law.· So that's why that's there.

15· · · · · · · ·Secondly, the -- there is a provision here

16· ·about providing board notice if the licensee decides to

17· ·change its occupancy, and that talks about the

18· ·certificate of occupancy relating to DCRA or its use of

19· ·the public space.· That phrase is there because it

20· ·relates to the sidewalk cafe.· Public space committee,

21· ·that -- that area is -- is concerns itself with the

22· ·space in the sidewalk cafe.· That The Board at least be
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·1· ·given notice because one of the challenges in this area

·2· ·is that the whole concept of occupancy seems to be the

·3· ·province of different government agencies and there's

·4· ·absolutely no coordination currently.· So at a minimum

·5· ·this notice provision will at least allow or give

·6· ·some -- some -- a heads up to The Board to understand

·7· ·that the licensee is taking that action and that's just

·8· ·as an additional benefit in my -- given my understanding

·9· ·that there's no -- there's no real coordination with

10· ·respect to these agencies when it comes to this area.

11· · · · · · · ·I know that was a little long in the

12· ·explanation, but I wanted to make sure it was thoroughly

13· ·understood.· And if board members have any questions,

14· ·I'm happy to address them at this time.

15· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Just a question.· You

16· ·said on charge -- violation of 25-762B1 would be

17· ·dismissed.· What's the rationale behind that?

18· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· Certainly.· The rationale

19· ·behind that is we -- we're going to get capacity

20· ·numbers.· So it's a -- a process of negotiation we're

21· ·going to get capacity numbers, and the government just

22· ·provided a profer on the evidentiary limitations that
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·1· ·give rise to that -- to that particular charge.· That is

·2· ·the -- the -- the weaker portion of the case, and I felt

·3· ·that it was a more just outcome and a more useful

·4· ·outcome for The Board to have these capacity numbers as

·5· ·a result of the negotiating process.

·6· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you have any --

·7· ·yes, Mr. Silverstein.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Thank you very much,

·9· ·Mr. Rivero.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· You're welcome.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· The -- the capacity

12· ·numbers are extremely helpful, but I want to make sure

13· ·that both sides are on the same page with what this

14· ·means.· You say 375 inside, 96 the sidewalk cafe all

15· ·persons.· What does all persons mean?· Does that include

16· ·people who are working there?· Does that include

17· ·security?· Does that include people who are standing in

18· ·line inside the sidewalk cafe to get into the

19· ·restaurant?· What does all persons mean to both sides

20· ·here?

21· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· Well, I can answer from my

22· ·side, and then the other side can answer.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Perfect.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· Okay.· A person means a person

·3· ·meaning it has to be a patron, a worker, or anything

·4· ·else, anybody inside the licensed premises for whatever

·5· ·reason.· So their status as a patron or an employee is

·6· ·not relevant.· The status as a living person inside the

·7· ·licensed premises, that's all that matters.· The

·8· ·licensed premises includes the sidewalk cafe, but

·9· ·there's a separate number for the sidewalk cafe.· The

10· ·licensed premises are the interior of the establishment,

11· ·and there's a number for that as well.· If there's a

12· ·line and there are people on the sidewalk in line, the

13· ·sidewalk is not the licensed premises.· So persons in

14· ·line on the sidewalk are not part of the number in

15· ·this -- that's included here.· I hope that answers from

16· ·my point of view the question for the board member.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. KLINE:· And -- and we agree with that

18· ·and we believe that it's consistent with the aftermath

19· ·of the Madam's Organ opinion where it was important that

20· ·there be an overall capacity number and that it be all

21· ·persons as the OIC states in the interior with respect

22· ·to the capacity number for the interior and on the
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·1· ·sidewalk cafe.· So that is our understanding as well.

·2· ·It includes everybody whether they're employees,

·3· ·patrons, what have you.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Thank you, gentlemen, for

·5· ·clearing that up.· I wanted to make sure we're -- we're

·6· ·all on the same page.

·7· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yes, Ms. Miller.

·8· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Thank you, Mr. Rivero.· So my

·9· ·question is -- I don't know if I missed this or not, but

10· ·how was capacity determined?

11· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· Sure.· So we didn't flip a

12· ·coin.· This was not part of any -- you know, any game.

13· ·I looked at drawings.· Okay.· We talked about the -- the

14· ·square footage --

15· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Right.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· -- of both the sidewalk cafe

17· ·and the interior because they're two separate areas and

18· ·you have to have two separate numbers calculated.· And I

19· ·also looked at -- the building code is -- I think it's

20· ·entitled -- I think it's 13DCMR or 11DCMR.· And the

21· ·building code is rather complicated so I'm not going to

22· ·get into it here.· But it does provide formulas for
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·1· ·calculating the number of people in an establishment

·2· ·depending on whether you want them to be sitting or

·3· ·standing.· So I felt that that level of inquiry was

·4· ·sufficient due diligence to satisfy myself of the

·5· ·numbers that were being generated by this process.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. KLINE:· And it was also the product of a

·7· ·negotiation.· So all of that went into it, but it was

·8· ·also negotiated --

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. KLINE:· -- because we had differing

11· ·perspectives in terms of how to interpret that.· And

12· ·ultimately honestly we came up with a negotiated number.

13· ·But it -- it did take all of that into account.

14· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· Right.· All right.  I

15· ·mean I remember you saying you didn't pull it out of the

16· ·air or whatever.· But -- so it was negotiated.· You all

17· ·talked about it and you looked at the building code,

18· ·whatever.· You didn't confer with DCRA or anything like

19· ·that?

20· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· No, we did not.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. KLINE:· No.· But we both did consult the

22· ·building code.· My office has had experience with
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·1· ·capacity numbers on public space, to a lesser extent the

·2· ·DCRA building code process.· And we brought that to the

·3· ·table and then we looked at the actual code.· And it was

·4· ·looking at that and discussing that and going back and

·5· ·forth.· There was actually quite a bit of thought and

·6· ·discussion that went into it.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· I -- I do want to add since --

·8· ·since you just asked the question about DCRA.  I

·9· ·actually did contact the zoning administrator.· I have

10· ·-- and I engaged the zoning administrator in order to

11· ·understand the process --

12· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Great.· Okay.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· -- which is not immediately

14· ·obvious from the building code.· So I did that, I did

15· ·take that step so I could figure out how it happens.

16· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· Thank you.

17· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Go ahead, Mr. Short.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Yeah.· Thank you both [inaudible

19· ·1:04:18].· But speaking of -- and I would be remiss if I

20· ·didn't speak on this.· You mentioned the numbers inside

21· ·and you mentioned the numbers on the sidewalk cafe.· You

22· ·also said if there's a line of people out front, then
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·1· ·that doesn't calculate.· Now, just for the record I

·2· ·have -- I have to say this.· The exits on the front of

·3· ·the building where the violations were written because

·4· ·if the people inside -- if they're at capacity and there

·5· ·are people on the sidewalk cafe, how are the people

·6· ·going to exit the building when you have lines out

·7· ·front?· But I know that's not a part of this process

·8· ·right now.· But public safety-wise I have to mention

·9· ·that.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. KLINE:· Can I address that?

11· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· No.· Actually I'm -- I'm just

12· ·trying to --

13· · · · · · · ·MR. KLINE:· No?

14· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· I'd just like to -- I'm trying

15· ·to understand the board members question.· So I -- I

16· ·want to --

17· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Well, it was more of a comment.

18· ·It was more of a comment.· I was saying to you I

19· ·understand that you went through the building code and

20· ·you're to be -- to be commended for that.· I simply said

21· ·when you look at public safety when you have a full

22· ·capacity inside of the building, you have a full
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·1· ·capacity at the sidewalk cafe, you also have the front

·2· ·door of the establishment right there.· Understand my

·3· ·point, you have people on the sidewalk lined up to come

·4· ·in and you're already at capacity.· Now you have

·5· ·something happen inside, it's going to be very hard to

·6· ·get people out of that building safely.· I just wanted

·7· ·to put that on the record.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. KLINE:· Two comments, and I understand

·9· ·given your background your -- your concerns about these

10· ·issues, Mr. Short.· So I do want to address them.· One

11· ·is whatever we do here does not negate their obligation

12· ·to comply with the building code and otherwise comply

13· ·with the fire department in terms of keeping exits clear

14· ·and what have you.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Thank you.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. KLINE:· So that's number one.· Number

17· ·two, you should know from a practical standpoint for

18· ·this restaurant they have exits and entrances -- this

19· ·extends the entire with the ground floor of the

20· ·building.· So they actually have entrance and exits on

21· ·both sides.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· I'm very familiar with that.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. KLINE:· Okay.· I didn't know whether you

·2· ·were.· So -- but -- but the first comment is the

·3· ·important one, they still have to comply with the fire

·4· ·code and the building code regardless of what we do

·5· ·here, and they recognize that.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Thank you very much.· And thank

·7· ·you for your diligence in this case.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. KLINE:· Thank you.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· That was going to be my

10· ·response about the fire code.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. KLINE:· Sure.

12· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yes, Mr. Alberti.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· So Mr. Rivero, thank you for

14· ·all your hard work on this.· But I'd like more detail on

15· ·how you interpreted the building code.· And don't spare

16· ·me the details because I've read it, I've pondered over

17· ·it.· We have discussed it here as a board in many cases.

18· ·So please provide more details rather than just waving

19· ·your hands and saying oh, we looked at it.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· Well, I -- I don't believe I'm

21· ·waving my hands saying I looked at it because I'm --

22· ·I'm --
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· No.· I'm sure you didn't.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· [Inaudible 1:04:18] I did.· So

·3· ·I don't --

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· But that was your explanation.

·5· ·I just want to know.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· I do not agree with that

·7· ·characterization.· I actually literally have not waved

·8· ·my hands.· But -- but -- to answer your question --

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· I don't believe that you did.

10· ·I think you looked at it.· But I'd like in your

11· ·explanation those details.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· Yeah.· To answer your question

13· ·there is a -- there's a table in the building code.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Yes.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· And the -- the -- the table

16· ·includes categories of space.· So you look at the code

17· ·given the kind of space that you have.· Is this a

18· ·meeting hall?· Is this a restaurant, is this a stadium,

19· ·whatever it is?· Once you get to the kind of space that

20· ·you have, then you look at the uses of that space with

21· ·respect to whether you're going to have what's called --

22· ·there's three categories that provide formula -- figures
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·1· ·for a formula.· So the first category is going to be

·2· ·what's called fixed seating, then there's just going to

·3· ·be people standing, and then there's just going to be

·4· ·tables and chairs.· So there's three different numbers

·5· ·depending on whether you're going to have tables and

·6· ·chairs; how many people can you have and have tables and

·7· ·chairs, how many people can you have if you're just

·8· ·going to have chairs and nothing else, and how many

·9· ·people can you have if you just want people to stand up,

10· ·okay, standing up.· In the real world -- in the real

11· ·world a space -- let's -- you know, I'm now actually

12· ·moving my hands making a rectangle in front of me.  A

13· ·space may be designated for a little corner where

14· ·there's just chairs and no tables, for example a bar.

15· ·Another portion of the space may have tables and chairs,

16· ·and another portion of the space may have no tables and

17· ·no chairs and people can just stand there.· Okay.· So in

18· ·order to be able to accurately reflect the numbers,

19· ·right, is why you need a building code official who can

20· ·go back and forth with a plan -- with the drawings and

21· ·calculate not only what areas are to be used for the

22· ·calculation of the three different categories.· Because
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·1· ·for example, if the square footage includes a bathroom,

·2· ·you don't add the bathroom as part of the square footage

·3· ·in the formula or if it includes space behind a bar or a

·4· ·kitchen where you're not going to have -- so in order to

·5· ·figure out the occupancy you got to figure out how much

·6· ·of that space is actually usable to either put a

·7· ·chair -- a table or chair or stand the person on it.· So

·8· ·once that process is -- is completed which is a back and

·9· ·forth with the permit applicant and the -- the building

10· ·permit folks at DCRA, then they -- then they -- they

11· ·take the space and divide it in the way that I have

12· ·described and use the formula, and -- and you get the

13· ·number that you get.· So to take -- so you can't just

14· ·take the space and say oh, okay, let's see how many

15· ·people we can pack in here and only use the number for

16· ·the people standing because that doesn't make much

17· ·sense.· That means you're going to -- where are you

18· ·going to put the tables and chairs?

19· · · · · · · ·So at that point I realized that I'm no

20· ·longer a government prosecutor.· I am now a building

21· ·code official, and that's not my role.· My role is to

22· ·engage in what I believe is reasonable due diligence so
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·1· ·that I can produce numbers that I can tell The Board

·2· ·were the product of some reasonable thought process, and

·3· ·that's what I've done.· I hope that this answers the

·4· ·question with more detail.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· It does.· Thank you so much.

·6· ·I appreciate it.

·7· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Any other questions

·8· ·by any board members?

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. KLINE:· I just have a -- a comment --

10· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yes.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. KLINE:· -- that I didn't have a chance

12· ·to make but I'd like to.· The Board is well aware and

13· ·this applicant is certainly well aware that on Halloween

14· ·of last year we had -- I think its been described as a

15· ·perfect storm.· There's been a number of

16· ·characterizations.· That's not lost on this licensee.

17· ·This licensee next year will celebrate its 30th

18· ·anniversary.· Mr. Short indicated he's familiar with it.

19· ·I think most of you are probably familiar with it

20· ·because it will be around 30 years next year.· So they

21· ·understand The Board's concerns.· In fact, you may

22· ·remember at the rule making hearing concerning pub
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·1· ·crawls Mr. Tobin's partner, Mr. Heidenberger was here

·2· ·along with his son Eric Heidenberger, and they both

·3· ·testified -- took their time out to come and -- and

·4· ·share their thoughts on the pub crawl regulations which

·5· ·I think the -- The Board found helpful.· So we

·6· ·acknowledge that this was a difficult day all the way

·7· ·around, and we acknowledge as a part of this Offer in

·8· ·Compromise that we bear some responsibility for it.· We

·9· ·think that the work that was done between Mr. Rivero

10· ·and -- and myself on behalf of the licensee was very

11· ·helpful, was productive, was forward thinking in terms

12· ·of making sure that we don't -- that we do what we can

13· ·to avoid a repeat of that perfect storm.· And I wanted

14· ·to express that to The Board because I don't want The

15· ·Board to think oh, well, they worked it out and they're

16· ·paying $500 and that's the end of it.· I mean this is a

17· ·capacity number, it's real.· And you and myself and

18· ·another assistant attorney general worked out a similar

19· ·result in another case.· And I think we all believed it

20· ·was worthwhile, and we would ask that you accept the

21· ·Offer in Compromise.

22· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· All
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·1· ·right.· There is an Offer in Compromise of a -- a fine

·2· ·of $500 payable within 30 days.· If it's not payable

·3· ·within 30 days, the licensee will be suspended, that the

·4· ·licensee will receive a mandatory warning for violation

·5· ·of D.C. Official Code Section 25-711, that the licensee

·6· ·agrees to the following capacity numbers in accordance

·7· ·with D.C. Official Code Section 25-42A5 that there are

·8· ·96 for the sidewalk cafe capacity and -- and 375 for the

·9· ·interior.· And capacity shall mean the total of all

10· ·persons permitted to be seated or standing inside the

11· ·licensed premises.· The capacity numbers agreed upon may

12· ·be subject to modification by the law.· Licensee agrees

13· ·to give notice to ABC if it files any anticipation to

14· ·modify existing permits for occupancy, and the charge of

15· ·violation of D.C. Official Code Section 25-762B1 shall

16· ·be dismissed.· There is an offer -- there is a written

17· ·offer that all the board members has in front of them,

18· ·and this will be incorporated into the record.· I -- is

19· ·this your understanding and agreement with this Offer in

20· ·Compromise?

21· · · · · · · ·MR. KLINE:· Yes, sir.

22· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· When are you aware
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·1· ·that by accepting an Offer in Compromise that you're

·2· ·giving up your right to a hearing?

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. KLINE:· Yes, sir.

·4· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· And you're also aware

·5· ·that by accepting the Offer in Compromise you are giving

·6· ·up your right to appeal this matter?

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. KLINE:· Yes, sir.

·8· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· With that

·9· ·said I then make a motion that this offer in -- this

10· ·written Offer in Compromise that was just repeated, that

11· ·it be accepted.· Is there a second?

12· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Second.

13· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Ms. Miller has

14· ·seconded the motion.· Any further -- any discussions?

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Yes.· I'm going to oppose this

16· ·motion.· I fully understand Mr. Rivero's concerns and

17· ·discussion about occupancy, and he's absolutely correct.

18· ·If I was confident that the issue here was solely

19· ·occupancy I'd have to agree with this.· However, when I

20· ·read the report certain questions came to mind.· And one

21· ·in particular that I was hoping might be sorted by

22· ·testimony from our investigators so that I could learn
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·1· ·the truth was whether or not it wasn't just capacity;

·2· ·whether or not they possibly expanded the area of the

·3· ·sidewalk cafe by allowing people and serving people

·4· ·outside -- allowing people to stand and sort of

·5· ·participate in what was going on by standing outside the

·6· ·boundaries of what is permitted by DDOT as the sidewalk

·7· ·cafe.· Well, we don't have testimony to that.· I don't

·8· ·know, but I still have that question.· So I would have

·9· ·rather have gone to a full hearing to learn that.  I

10· ·still -- that's a huge question in my mind still.· So

11· ·I'm going to have to deny this Offer in Compromise.

12· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Thank you, Mr.

13· ·Alberti.· Any other comments by any other board members?

14· ·Yes, Mr. Silverstein.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· I want to keep it short.

16· ·I want to thank both sides here.· What happened was --

17· ·was intolerable, and it's time for us to move forward.

18· ·This is a licensee that's been there 30 years.· We don't

19· ·want to see this any more and nor do they.· I want to

20· ·thank both sides for -- for working on this.· I think

21· ·it's a little lenient, but I'm going to move -- I'm

22· ·going to support it and move forward and I hope that all
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·1· ·of us have learned from this.· I also would be remiss if

·2· ·I did not thank the ABRA investigative staff for doing

·3· ·an awesome job on this.· We're all dedicated to moving

·4· ·forward properly on this and I want to thank Mr. Puente

·5· ·and all the others who worked so hard on this.· And I

·6· ·want to thank Mr. Rivero who worked so hard on this as

·7· ·well.· Thank you.· Let's -- let's put this in our

·8· ·rearview mirror and let's move forward.

·9· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Any other comments?

10· ·Hearing none, all those in favor say aye.· [Chorus of

11· ·ayes].· All those opposed.· [No audible response].

12· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Opposed.

13· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· The matter passed 4

14· ·to 1 with Mr. Alberti in opposition.· And are we signing

15· ·a board order?· The Board will issue a board order in

16· ·this matter.· All right.· Thank you.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. RIVERO:· Thank you.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. KLINE:· Thank you.

19· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· We're in recess until

20· ·our 1:30 hearing.

21· · · · · · · ·(Whereupon the above-entitled matter was

22· ·concluded.)
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